
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
Page 1  

 

 

Town of Mineral Springs  

Mineral Springs Town Hall 

3506 Potter Road S ~ Mineral Springs 

Mineral Springs Town Council 

Regular Meeting  

February 8, 2024 ~ 7:30 P.M. 

AGENDA 

 
1. Opening  

 

The meeting will be called to order, an invocation will be delivered, and the Pledge of Allegiance will 
be recited.    
 

2. Public Comments 
 

The town council will hear comments from members of the public on any matters of interest to them 
during this ten-minute period.  
 

3. Consent Agenda – Action Item 
 

A. Approval of the January 11, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
B. Acceptance of the December 2023 Union County Tax Report  
C. Acceptance of the December 2023 Finance Report 
 

4. Consideration of Accepting the Audit Report – Action Item 
 

The council will consider accepting the audit report for FY2022-2023.  
 

5. Consideration of Adopting Ordinance-2023-05 (O-2023-05) – Action Item 
 

The council will consider adopting an ordinance (O-2023-05) authorizing transfer of the final 
$39,948.89 to the General Fund, which will close out the original ARPA/CSLFRF Grant Project 
Ordinance. 
 

6. Discussion and Consideration of a Nuisance Ordinance – Action Item   

The council will discuss and consider the possibility of beginning the process of adopting a nuisance 
ordinance for household refuse. 
 

7. Discussion and Consideration of the 2024 Annual Festival – Action Item   

The council will be presented with the challenges of holding the 2024 annual festival and will decide 
to either move forward with it or to cancel the event this year. 
 

8. Consideration of the Deer Urban Archery Season Renewal – Action Item 
 

The council will consider approving the Deer Urban Archery Season for the 2024-25 season, which 
runs from January 11, 2025 through February 16, 2025. 

 
9. Staff Updates    

 The staff will update the council on any developments that may affect the town.  
  
10. Other Business 

 
11. Adjournment 



 

January 11, 2024 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 40 

 

Draft Minutes of the  
Mineral Springs Town Council  

Regular Meeting  
January 11, 2024 – 7:30 p.m.  

 
The Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, met in a Regular Session at the 
Mineral Springs Town Hall located at 3506 Potter Road S, Mineral Springs, North Carolina, at 7:30 p.m. 
on Thursday, January 11, 2024. 
 
Present: Mayor Pro Tem Valerie Coffey, Councilman Jerry Countryman, Councilwoman 

Lundeen Cureton, and Councilwoman Bettylyn Krafft.  
 
Absent: Mayor Frederick Becker III, Councilwoman Janet Critz, and Councilman Jim Muller.   
 
Staff Present: Town Clerk/Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks, Attorney Bobby Griffin, and 

Administrative Assistant/Deputy Town Clerk Sharelle Quick.  
 
Visitors: None. 
 
1. Opening 

With a quorum present at 7:30 p.m. on January 11, 2024, Mayor Pro Tem Valerie Coffey called the 
regular meeting to order.  
 

 Councilwoman Cureton delivered the invocation. 

 Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Public Comments 

 There were no public comments. 

3. Consent Agenda – Action Item 

Councilwoman Krafft motioned to approve the consent agenda containing the December 14, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes, the November 2023 Union County Tax Report, and the November 2023 
Finance Report, and Councilman Countryman seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: 
Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Krafft.  Nays: None. 

4. Discussion and Consideration of a Nuisance Ordinance – Action Item  

Mayor Pro Tem Coffey requested a motion to table this item. 

Councilman Countryman motioned that this item number four, decision, discussion, and 
consideration of a nuisance ordinance be moved to the February meeting.  Mayor Pro Tem 
commented that was due to the fact that Councilman Muller had initiated this item, this was his call, 
and he was not here to speak.  Councilwoman Cureton seconded the motion by Councilman 
Countryman.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Krafft.  
Nays: None. 

5. 2023 Zoning and Planning Report  

Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks presented the 2023 Zoning and Planning Report. 

Zoning Permits – 29; Foundation Permits – 10; Certificates of Zoning Compliance – 12; Sign Permits 
– 5; Fence Permits – 4; Accessory Permits – 12; Special Use Permits – 2; Certificates of 
Nonconformity Adjustments – 2; Zoning Violations – 11; and Planning Board Activity – Continued 
review of the development ordinance for irregularities and recommending text amendments.   



 

January 11, 2024 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 41 

 

Councilwoman Krafft asked Ms. Brooks if the zoning violations were things that people in the 
community brought up. 

Ms. Brooks responded that most of them were, and she noted that she did not go out looking for 
them. 

Councilman Countryman asked Ms. Brooks how many new homes were built. 

Ms. Brooks responded there were 10 new homes and two replacement homes (2803 Tom Laney 
Road and 4815 Lon Parker Road). 

Councilman Countryman asked Ms. Brooks if the new homes were built in existing subdivisions. 

Ms. Brooks responded that the addresses of the new homes and replacement homes were shown 
in the report.  The replacement homes were shown with an asterisk.  

6. Staff Updates 

 There were no staff updates.   

7. Other Business 

There was no other business. 

8. Adjournment – Action Item 

 At 7:37 p.m. Councilman Countryman motioned to adjourn the meeting and Councilwoman Krafft 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Krafft.  Nays: 
None. 

 The next regular meeting will be on Thursday, February 8, 2024 at 7:30 p.m. at the Mineral Springs 
Town Hall.  

 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
 

             
  Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk  Valerie Coffey, Mayor Pro Tem   

 

















































msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Agenda Item

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
# 

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Rectangle

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
2/8/2024

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Rectangle







 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
 

NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 

Audited Financial Statements  
 
 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town Council 
 

Frederick Becker, III, Mayor 
Gerald Countryman, Mayor Pro Tem 

Valerie Coffey 
Janet Critz 

Lundeen Cureton 
Bettylyn Krafft 

Jim Muller 
 
 
 

Administrative and Financial Staff 
 

Vicky Brooks, Clerk & Zoning Administrator 
Janet Ridings, Tax Collector 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

Town of Mineral Springs 
Table of Contents 

June 30, 2023 
 

                      
Exhibit Page

Financial Section:

Independent Auditor's Report 1

Management's Discussion and Analysis 4

Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements:

1 Statement of Net Position 13

2 Statement of Activities 14

Fund Financial Statements:

3 Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 15

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to
3   the Statement of Net Position 15

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - 
4   Governmental Funds 16

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
  in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement

5   of Activities 17

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - 
6   Budget to Actual - General Fund 18

Notes to the Financial Statements 19-35

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

Town of Mineral Springs 
Table of Contents 

June 30, 2023 
 

 
Schedule Page

Required Supplemental Financial Data:

1 Local Government Employees' Retirement System-
  Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset)
  Last Ten Fiscal Years 36

2 Local Government Employees' Retirement System-
  Contributions
  Last Ten Fiscal Years 37

Individual Fund Statements and Schedules:

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
1   Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund 38-39

2 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
  Balance - Budget and Actual - From Inception - CSLFRF Grant Project 40
  Special Revenue Fund

3 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
  Balance - Budget and Actual - From Inception - Social-Emotional Readiness 41
  Grant Project Special Revenue Fund

Other Schedules:

2 Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 42

3 Analysis of Current Tax Levy 43

Compliance Section:

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On

  Compliance And Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

  Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing

  Standards. 44-45

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 

 



6420 Rea Road, Suite A1 #300 
Charlotte, NC  28277 

Tel:  704.996.0764 
Fax:  704.228.0340 

www.KG-CPA.com 
Email: kendra.gangal@kg-cpa.com 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
and Members of the Town Council 
Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina 
 
 
Opinions 
 
I have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund, of the Town of 
Mineral Springs, North Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, whi
of contents.  
 
In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, and each major fund of the Town of Mineral 
Springs, North Carolina as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and the 
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  My responsibilities under those standards 

sibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my 
report.  I am required to be independent of the Town of Mineral Springs, and to meet my other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to my audit.  I believe that the 
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 
 

 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raises substantial doubt about the Town of Mineral Springs
to continue as a going concern for the twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

 

 



 

 

bility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free of 

opinions.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Governmental Auditing Standards will 
always detect material statement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made 
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.   
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Governmental Auditing Standards, I 
 

 Exercised professional judgement and maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsible to those risks.  Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town of Mineral Springs internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 conclude whether, in my judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Town of Mineral Springs rn for 
a reasonable period of time. 

 
I am required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that I identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Ac
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4-12, the Schedules of Employer Contributions, and the Local Government 

Contributions, on pages 36 and 37, respectively be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during my audit of the basic 
financial statements. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

 



 

 

Supplementary Information 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Town of Mineral Springs, 
statements and other schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. This information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the individual fund statements are fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated November 28, 2023 
on our consideration of the Town of Mineral Springs internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Town of Mineral Springs internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of 
Mineral Springs s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Kendra J. Gangal, CPA 

Charlotte, NC 
November 28, 2023

 



Management Discussion and Analysis 
Town of Mineral Springs 
June 30, 2023 

- 4 - 

 
 
                                           nalysis 

 
 

As management of the Town of Mineral Springs, we offer readers of the Town of Mineral Springs
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Mineral Springs for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.  We encourage readers to read the information presented here in 
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the Town
follow this narrative.  
 
Financial Highlights 
 

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town of Mineral Springs exceeded its 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $3,033,438. 

 position increased by $262,974 primarily due to the CSLFRF grant and 
revenues exceeding expenditures. 

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Mineral Springs
reported combined ending fund balances of $1,408,860, an increase of $294,066 in comparison 
with the prior year.  Approximately 4 percent of this total amount or $63,064 is non-spendable or 
restricted.   

 The Town Council has all fund balance in the General Fund after non-
spendable, restrictions, and commitments have taken place. 

 The Town of Mineral Springs incurred no debt during the current fiscal year, and continues to have 
zero debt. 
 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Mineral Springs
financial statements.  The Town onsist of three components; 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure 1). 
The basic financial statements present two different views of the Town through the use of government-wide 
statements and fund financial statements.  In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains 
other supplemental information that will enhance the reader s understanding of the financial condition of the 
Town of Mineral Springs.  



Management Discussion and Analysis 
Town of Mineral Springs 
June 30, 2023 

- 5 - 

 
 

 
Required Components of Annual Financial Report 

Figure 1 

 
 
 
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
       
 
 

Summary      Detail 
 
 

 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
 
The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide 
Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the Town s financial status. 
 
The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 6) are Fund Financial Statements.  These statements focus on the 
activities of the individual parts of the Town government.  These statements provide more detail than the 
government-wide statements.  There are two parts to the Fund Financial Statements:  1) the governmental 
funds statements; and 2) the budgetary comparison statements. 

M

Discussion and 

Analysis 

Basic  

Financial 

Statements 

Government-wide 

Financial  

Statements 

Fund  

Financial  

Statements 

Notes to the  

Financial 

Statements 



Management Discussion and Analysis 
Town of Mineral Springs 
June 30, 2023 

- 6 - 

 
 
The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes.  The notes to the financial statements explain in 
detail some of the data contained in those statements.  After the notes, supplemental information is provided 
to show details about the Town n required by the General Statutes 
can also be found in this part of the statements. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the 
Town s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business.  The government-wide 
statements provide short and long-term information about the Town a whole.   
 
The two government-wide statements report the Town position and how they have changed. Net 
position is the differences between the Town  total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gage the Town
condition. 
 
The government-wide statements comprise only one category:  governmental activities.  The governmental 
activities include most of the Town of Mineral Springs d zoning, fire 
protection, street lighting, community projects, and general administration.  Property taxes, sales taxes, and 
excise taxes finance most of these activities.  The Town of Mineral Springs does not operate any business-
type activities or any component unit.     
 
The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements (see Figure 2) provide a more detailed look at the Town
activities.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Town of Mineral Springs, like all other 
governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-
compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the Town
ordinance.  During fiscal year 2022-23, the Town of Mineral Springs used the General Fund, the CSLFRF 
Special Revenue Fund, and a Social-Emotional Readiness Grant Project Fund for an after-school program, all 
of which are governmental funds. 
 
Governmental Funds  Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  All of the Town  basic services are 
accounted for in governmental funds.  These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash 
flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year.  
Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting that 
provides a short-term spending focus.  As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader 
a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources 
available to finance the Town tionship between government activities (reported in the 
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a 
reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.   
 
 
 
 
 



Management Discussion and Analysis 
Town of Mineral Springs 
June 30, 2023 

- 7 - 

 
The Town of Mineral Springs adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General 
Statutes.  The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the Town, the 
management of the Town, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for 
them.  It also authorizes the Town to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period 
activities.  The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the Town complied 
with the budget ordinance and whether or not the Town succeeded in providing the services as planned when  
the budget was adopted.  The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is 
presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document.  The statement 
shows four columns:  1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the 
board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the 
difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.   
 
The Town approved an amended project ordinance for the CSLFRF Grant Project Fund.  This fund is to 
account for funds received pursuant to the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021.  During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, the Town received the 
second half of the total allocation of $270,619 and transferred $230,670 into the General Fund in the 
Revenue Replacement  category as authorized by the Final Rule issued by the US Treasury.   

 
Notes to the Financial Statements  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the 
financial statements are on pages 19-35 of this report.  
 
Other Information  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
includes supplementary information concerning the Town of Mineral Springs.  This supplementary 
information can be found beginning on page 36 of this report.  
 
Interdependence with Other Entities:  The Town depends on financial resources flowing from, or 
association with, the State of North Carolina.  Because of this dependency, the Town is subject to changes in 
specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on modification to State laws and State appropriations.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Management Discussion and Analysis 
Town of Mineral Springs 
June 30, 2023 

- 8 - 

 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 

The Town of Mineral Springs Position 
Figure 2 

As noted earlier, net position 
condition.  The assets of the Town of Mineral Springs exceeded liabilities by $3,033,438 as of June 30, 2023.  
The Town increased by $262,974 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.  However, the largest 
portion (51%) reflects the Town vestment in capital assets.  The Town uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  An additional portion of 
the Town of Mineral Springs  (2.0%) represents resources that are restricted by State Statute.  
The remaining balance of $1,358,646 is unrestricted.   
 
Several particular aspects of the Town financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted 
governmental net assets: 
 

 Continued diligence in the collection of non-motor-vehicle property taxes by renewing our tax 
collection contract with Union County and achieving a current-year tax collection percentage of 
99.63%, which exceeds the statewide average of 99.27% for all municipalities in FY2022 and which 
exceeds the peer-group average (without electric systems, population 2,500-9,999) of 98.74%. 

 A continued focus on collecting prior-year delinquent taxes on the part of both the Union County tax 
collector, which resulted in collections of $743 including base taxes, interest, and fees; this is up from 
the $645 collected last year. 

 Electric sales tax (formerly considered a franchise tax by the NC Department of Revenue) revenues of 
$209,677, of which an estimated $140,000 is due to a single industrial facility in the town. 

 An ongoing policy of providing minimal municipal services, which reflects the desires of a majority 
of the town's residents. 

 An ongoing policy of providing minimal municipal services, which reflects the desires of a majority 
of the town s residents. 

 Continued extremely conservative fiscal policies on the part of the town council. 
 



Management Discussion and Analysis 
Town of Mineral Springs 
June 30, 2023 

- 9 - 

Town of Mineral Springs Changes in Net Position 
Figure 3 

 

Governmental activities 262,974, thereby 
accounting for the net increase in the net position of the Town of Mineral Springs.  Key elements of this 
increase are as follows: 
 

 Property tax revenues increased 1.07% 
 Overall sales tax revenues increased 2.08%. 
 Actual expenditures remained less than budgeted amounts. 

 
Financial Analysis of the Town of Mineral Springs nds 
 
As noted earlier, the Town of Mineral Springs uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds.  The focus of the Town of Mineral Springs s governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources.  Such information is useful in 
assessing the Town of Mineral Springs nancing requirements.     
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Mineral Springs.  At the end of the current fiscal 
year, Town of Mineral Springs n the General Fund was $1,345,166.  The Town of 
Mineral Springs Council has adopted a minimum fund balance policy whereby the Town should maintain an 
available fund balance of 20% of general fund expenditures in case of unforeseen needs or opportunities, in 



Management Discussion and Analysis 
Town of Mineral Springs 
June 30, 2023 

- 10 - 

addition to meeting the cash flow needs of the Town.  The Town currently has an available fund balance of 
395% of general fund expenditures, and total fund balance represent 395% of the same amount. 
 
At June 30, 2023 the governmental funds of Town of Mineral Springs reported a combined fund balance of 
$1,408,860 with a net increase in fund balance of $294,066.   
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights:  During the fiscal year, the Town of Mineral Springs amended its 
budget once after initial adoption on June 9, 2022.  Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three 
categories:  1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance 
once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external 
sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to 
maintain services. One amendment in FY2022-23 totaling $15,100 fell into the third category:  $100 was 
transferred to Street Lighting  from Contingency  due to increases in Duke Energy s charges, and $15,000 
in unspent Intergovernmental;  appropriation was transferred to Office  to provide additional maintenance 
and landscaping at the municipal campus. Overall, revenues (including the appropriated fund balance) slightly 
exceeded budgeted amounts, closing the fiscal year at 109.46% of budget. 
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.  The Town of Mineral Springs estment in capital assets for its governmental activities as 
of June 30, 2023, totals $1,611,728 (net of accumulated depreciation).  These assets include machinery and 
equipment, buildings, sidewalks, and land. 
 
Capital assets valued at $1,352 were acquired during the 2022-23 fiscal year. 
 
There were no major capital asset deletions during the fiscal year.   
 

 
Town of Mineral Springs  

(net of depreciation) 
Figure 4 

 
Additional information on the Town capital assets can be found in note 3 of the Basic Financial Statements. 
 
Town of Mineral Springs Long-term Debt 
 
As of June 30, 2023, the Town of Mineral Springs had no long-term debt.  
 
 
 



Management Discussion and Analysis 
Town of Mineral Springs 
June 30, 2023 

- 11 - 

 
North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue 
to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located w ies.  The 
total value was approximately $424,891,572 as of June 30, 2023, consisting of $384,387,286 in real and 
personal property and $40,504,286 in registered motor vehicles.  The legal debt limit for Town of Mineral 
Springs is $33,991,326. 
 

 
The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the Town: 
 

 Proximity to the city of Charlotte:  The Town of Mineral Springs is located 25 miles south of 

retail development in Mineral Springs. 
 Retention of a key industry:  Parkdale Mills, a yarn manufacturer, has maintained its facility in 

Mineral Springs; this factory generates appro
tric 

franchise income. 
 
Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 
 
Governmental Activities:  Revenues are expected to increase by 13.5%, with a slight increase in sales tax 
revenues and a slight increase in property tax revenues due in part to new construction in Mineral Springs. A 
very large increase in interest and investment revenue on the town s idle funds, due to actions of the Federal 
Reserve, accounts for most of the increase.  Residential construction activity in Mineral Springs is slower than 
in surrounding municipalities but building activity on individual lots will still be taking place throughout the 
town.  
 
Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund are expected to increase by 3.99%, to $369,305. The bulk of the 
increase in budgeted expenditures is in the Capital  category, from $31,325 to $67,712, an increase of 116%. 
 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA): The town will be transferring the remainder of its $270,619 
ARPA/CSLFRF allocation - $39,949  into the General Fund in the Revenue Replacement  category.  The 
town council will be considering possible uses for this increase in General Fund balance funding during the 
2023-2024 fiscal year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Management Discussion and Analysis 
Town of Mineral Springs 
June 30, 2023 

- 12 - 

 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town of Mineral Springs' finances for those with an 
interest in this area.  Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for 
additional information should be directed to:  
 

Frederick (Rick) Becker III, Finance Officer 
PO Box 600 

Mineral Springs, NC  28108-0600 
(704) 243-0505 x223 (office) 

(704) 843-5870 (home) 
(704) 243-1705 (fax) 

msncmayor@yahoo.com 
 

Vicky Brooks, Town Clerk 
PO Box 600 

Mineral Springs, NC 28108-0600 
(704) 243-0505 x221 (office) 

(704) 289-5331 (mobile)  
(704) 243-1705 (fax) 

msvickybrooks@aol.com 
 

Website: 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Basic Financial Statements



 

 
 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

-13- 

                        TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA                   Exhibit 1 
                                

Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2023 

 

 



 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
-14- 

 TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA     Exhibit 2 
                                

Statement of Activities 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for 

Services

Operating Grants 
and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions
Governmental 

Activities Other Activities Total

Primary government:

Governmental Activities:

General government 266,387$             -$                     -$                     -$                    (266,387)$                   -$                       (266,387)$                   

Public safety 13,354 -                       -                       -                      (13,354)                       -                         (13,354)                       

Community projects 20,806 -                       -                       -                      (20,806)                       -                         (20,806)                       

Planning and zoning 37,433 6,888 -                       -                      (30,545)                       -                         (30,545)                       

Grant epenses 33,967 -                       -                       -                      (33,967)                       -                         (33,967)                       

Total governmental activities 
(See Note 1) 371,947               6,888                   -                       -                      (365,059)                     -                         (365,059)                     

Total primary government 371,947$             6,888$                 -$                     -$                    (365,059)$                   -$                       (365,059)$                   

General revenues:

Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose 89,684 -                         89,684                        

Other taxes 286,276 -                         286,276                      

Unrestricted investment earnings 20,710 -                         20,710                        

Miscellaneous 693                             -                         693                             

Transfer in from CSLFRF grant fund 230,670

Total general revenues 628,033                      -                         397,363                      

Change in net position 262,974                      -                         32,304                        

Net position, beginning, 2,770,464 -                         2,770,464                   

Net position, ending 3,033,438$                 -$                       2,802,768$                 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary GovernmentProgram Revenues

 
 
 



The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
-15- 

      TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA                            Exhibit 3 
                                

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2023 
 

Total Governmental

General
CSLFRF Grant Project 
Special Revenue Fund

Social-Emotional 
Readiness Grant 

Project Fund Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,346,997$                     -$                                1,346,997$                        
Restricted cash -                                     40,578 40,578                               
Taxes receivable, net 469 -                                  469                                    
Due from other governments 63,064 -                                  63,064                               

Total assets 1,410,530$                     40,578$                          -$                     1,451,108$                        

LIABILITIES 
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,821$                            -$                                1,821$                               
Unearned revenue -                                     39,948 39,948                               

Total liabilities 1,821                              39,948                            41,769                               

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
      Prepaid taxes 10 -                                  10                                      

Unavailable revenue 469 -                                  469                                    
Total Deferred inflows of resources 479                                 -                                  479                                    

FUND BALANCES
Restricted

Stabilization by State Statute 63,064 -                                  63,064                               
  Unassigned 1,345,166                       630                                 1,345,796                          

Total fund balance 1,408,230                       630                                 -                       1,408,860                          

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and fund balances. 1,410,530$                     40,578$                          -$                     

    Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit 1) are different because:

      Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore 

        are not reported in the funds. 1,611,728$                        

    Conributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are deferred outflows of resources

      on the Statement of Net Position 53,086                               

    Liabilities for earned revenues considered deferred inflows of resources in fund statements 469                                    

    Some liabilities, including installment loans and compensated balances, are not

      due and payable in he current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. -                                     

    Pension related deferrals (172)                                   

    Accrued interest receivable from taxes is not reported on the funds 83                                      

    Net pension liability (40,616)                              

    Net position of governmental activities 3,033,438$                        

Major Funds



The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
-16- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA                    Exhibit 4 
          

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Governmental Funds 

 For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 

 



The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
-17- 

 

 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA                          Exhibit 5 
 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

 For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 

 



 

 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

 
 
-18- 

                                    TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA                     Exhibit 6 
 

General Fund  
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 
 

General Fund

Original Final
Actual 

Amounts

Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes 88,305$       88,305$       89,765$       1,460$             
Unrestricted intergovernmental 276,300       276,300       286,276 9,976               
Permits and fees 3,500           3,500           6,888 3,388               
Investment earnings 600              600              20,108 19,508             
Miscellaneous 600              600              693              93                    

Total revenues 369,305       369,305       403,730       34,425             

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 251,776       251,776       234,024       17,752             
Public safety 13,400         13,500         13,354         146                  
Community projects 22,500         22,500         20,806         1,694               
Planning and zoning 47,304         47,304         37,433         9,871               
Capital outlay 31,325         31,325         1,352           29,973             
Contingency 3,000           2,900           -               2,900               
Total expenditures 369,305       369,305       306,969       62,336             

Revenues over (under) expenditures -               -               96,761         96,761             

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers to other funds -               -               (33,967)        (33,967)            
Transfers from other funds -               -               230,670 230,670           
Appropiated fund balance -               -               -               -                   

Total other financing sources (uses) -               -               196,703       196,703           

Net change in fund balance -               -               293,464       293,464           

Fund balance

Fund balances, beginning 1,114,766    

Fund balances, ending 1,408,230$  

 
        
 
        
 
 



 

 
 -19- 

 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 

 
NOTE 1-  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The accounting policies of the Town of Mineral Springs (the Town) conform to generally 
accepted accounting    principles as applicable to governments.  The following is a summary of 
the more significant accounting policies: 

 
A.   Reporting Entity 

 
The Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, in Union County, was incorporated under The 
General Statutes of The State of North Carolina on August 10, 1999.  It is governed by an elected 
mayor and a six-member council.  As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these 
financial statements present the Town, which has no component units. 

 
B.   Basis of Presentation  

 
Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display 
information about the primary government.  These statements include activities of the overall 
government.  The Town only has governmental type activities.  Governmental activities generally 
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other non-exchange transactions. 

 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenue for 
each function of the Town vernmental activities.  Direct expenses are those that are specifically 
associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular program 
or function.  Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reserved for the 
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients and (b) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are 
presented as general revenues. 

 
Fund Financial Statements:  The fund financial statements 
funds.  The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed 
in a separate column.  All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as non-
major funds.  

   
  The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 

                                                        
General Fund  The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. The General Fund 
accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The 
primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes and State-shared revenues.  The primary expenditures 
are for general government, zoning, public safety, salaries, and professional fees. 
 
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Grant Project Fund  This fund accounts for the 
transactions related to the American Rescue Plan Funds. 
 
Social-Emotional Readiness Grant Project Fund  This fund accounts for the transactions related to 
an after school program. 



 

 
 -20- 

 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 

 
NOTE 1-  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

 
 C.    Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

   
In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained during the 
year using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements:  The government-wide financial statements are reported 
using the economic resources measurement focus.  The government-wide financial statements are 
reported using the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 
Non-exchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or receives) value without directly receiving 
(or giving) equal value in exchange, including property taxes, grants and donations.  On an accrual 
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. 
Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied.   
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.   

 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements:  Governmental funds are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when they are measurable and available.  Expenditures are 
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-
term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized to the extent they 
matured.  General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in government funds.  
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
financing sources. 
 
 
 



 

 
 -21- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 1-  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

  The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, 
except for property taxes.  Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the 
amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor 
vehicles are materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the 
operations of the current year.  Also, as of September 1, 2013, State law altered the procedures 
for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North 
Carolina.  Effective with this change in the law, the State of North Carolina is responsible for 
billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all 
municipalities and special tax districts.  Property taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The 
billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they are received.  Uncollected taxes that 
were billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013 and for limited registration plates are shown as 
a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of resources.   

 
Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the beer and wine tax, collected and held 
by the State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue. Sales taxes are considered 
a shared revenue for the Town of Mineral Springs because the tax is levied by the counties and then 
remitted to and distributed by the State.  Most intergovernmental revenues are not susceptible to 
accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.  All taxes, including those 
dedicated for specific purposes are reported as general revenues rather than program revenues.  
Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a combination of specific 
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues.  Thus, when program 
expenses are incurred, there is both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the 
program.  It is the Town licy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, 
followed by categorical block grants, and then general revenues. 
 

  D.    Budgetary Data 
   

The Town's budgets are adopted as required by North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is 
adopted for the general fund.  All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal-year end.  Project ordinances 
are adopted for the CSLFRF Grant Project Fund and Social-Emotional Readiness Fund.  All budgets 
are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

   
Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the functional level for all annually budgeted 
funds and at the project level for the multi-year fund.  Amendments are required for any revisions 
that alter total expenditures of any fund or that change functional appropriations.  All amendments 
must be approved by the governing board.  During the year one immaterial amendment to the 
original budget was necessary.  The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or 
the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance 
can be adopted.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 -22- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 1-  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
  
 E.   Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity 

 
1. Deposits and Investments 

 
All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as 
required by State law [G.S. 159-31].  The Town may designate, as an official depository, any bank or 
savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina.  Also, the Town may 
establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and Super NOW accounts, money market accounts, 
and certificates of deposit.      

 
State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or 
obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of 
the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public 
authority; obligations of certain nonguaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of 
commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust 
(NCCMT).  The Town  investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and 
non-money market investments are reported at fair value.  The securities of the NCCMT 
Government Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, is measured at fair 
value.  The NCCMT  Term Portfolio is a bond fund, has no rating and is measured at fair value.  
As of June 30, 2020, The Term portfolio has a duration of .15 years.  Because the NCCMT 
Government has a weighted average maturity of less than 90 days, they are presented as an 
investment with a maturity of less than 6 months. 

 
2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

   
The Town pools money from both funds to facilitate disbursements and investment and to maximize 
investment income.  The Town maintains a general checking account and money market account for 
all general fund revenues. The Town considers all cash and investments to be demand deposits and 
are considered cash and cash equivalents. 

 
3. Restricted Assets 

 
The CSLFRF Grant Project Fund proceeds are classified as restricted.  
 

 
  
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 -23- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 1-  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

4. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 
 

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the Town levies ad valorem 
taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year.  The taxes 
are due on September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 
5.  These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2022.   
 

 5.   Allowances for Doubtful Accounts  
   

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of any allowance for 
doubtful accounts.  This amount is generally estimated by analyzing the amount of receivables that 
were written off in prior years.   

 
 6.  Capital Assets 
   

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than a 
certain cost and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.  Minimum capitalization costs are as 
follows:  furniture and equipment, $500.00.  Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at 
cost or estimated historical cost.  Donated capital assets received prior to June 15, 2015 are recorded 
at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.  Donated capital assets received after June 15, 
2015 are recorded at acquisition value.  All other purchased or constructed capital assets are reported 
at cost or estimated historical cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 

 
 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

 
                                             Estimated                     
                 Asset Class                Useful Lives 

    Infrastructure                 30 
    Buildings    50 
    Improvements                   29 
    Vehicles     6 
    Furniture and equipment        10 
    Computer equipment               3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

-24- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 1-  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 
  7.   Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
   

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows for 
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an expense or expenditure until then.  The Town has one item meeting this criterion, 
contributions made to the pension plan in the 2023 fiscal year.  In addition to liabilities, the statement 
of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This 
separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net 
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then.  The Town 
has several items that meet the criterion for this category  property taxes receivable, and deferrals of 
pension expense that result from the implementation of GASB Statement 68. 

   
  8.  Long-Term Obligations 
                        

In government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities fund type statement of net position.  
The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financial sources. 
 

  9.  Compensated Absences 
                        

The Town does not provide for vacation or sick pay for its employees. 
 
10.  Reimbursements for Pandemic-related Expenditures 
 
In FY 2020-21, the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) established the Coronavirus State and Local 
Fiscal Recovery Funds to support urgent COVID-19 response efforts and replace lost revenue from 
the eligible state, local, territorial, and tribal governments.  The Town was allocated $270,619 of 
fiscal recovery funds to be paid in two equal installments.  The first installment of $135,309 was 
received in July 2021.  The second installment was received in August 2022.  In 2022, The town 
amended the original project ordinance to account for spending the funds in accordance with the 
Revenue Replacement  category as per US Treasury. 

 
11. Net Position/Fund Balances 

 
   Net Position 

 
Net position in government-wide financial statements is classified as net investment in capital assets, 
net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted.  Restricted net position represents constraints on 
resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations 
of other governments or imposed by law through state statute. 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

-25- 

 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 
 

NOTE 1-  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 
  Fund Balances 
 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications 
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.   

 
 The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 
   

Non Spendable Fund Balance  this classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact.   
 
Restricted Fund Balance  This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific 
purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.   

 
Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute  North Carolina G.S. 159-8 prohibits 
units of government from budgeting or spending a portion of their fund balance. 
This is one of several statutes enacted by the North Carolina State Legislature in the 

 the fiscal health of local 
government units. Restricted by State statute (RSS), is calculated at the end of each 
fiscal year for all annually budgeted funds. The calculation in G.S. 159-8(a) 
provides a formula for determining what portion of fund balance is available for 
appropriation. The amount of fund balance not available for appropriation is what is 
known a Appropriated fund balance in any fund shall 
not exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, 
encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts, as those figures 
stand at the close of the fiscal year next preceding the budget. Per GASB guidance, 

 
constitutional provisions or enabling educed by inventories 
and prepaids as they are classified as nonspendable. Outstanding Encumbrances are 
included within RSS. RSS is included as a component of Restricted Net position 
and Restricted fund balance on the face of the balance sheet.
  

Committed Fund Balance  portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes 
imposed by majority vote by quorum of Town of Mineral Springs
decision-making authority).  The governing body can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of 
the fiscal year, commit fund balance.  Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance 
remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or 
revise the limitation. 
 
Assigned Fund Balance  portion of fund balance that the Town of Mineral Springs intends to use 
for specific purposes. 
 
Unassigned fund balance  the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or 
assigned to specific purposes or other funds.   



 

 
 -26- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 1-  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
Fund Balances 

For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund 
balance first, followed in order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly, 
unassigned fund balance. 

The Town of Mineral Springs has also adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the general 
fund which instructs management to conduct the business of the Town in such a manner that 
available fund balance is at least 20% of the budgeted expenditures.  Any portion of the general 
fund balance in excess of 20% of budgeted expenditures may be appropriated for one-time 
expenditures and may not be used for any purpose that would obligate the Town in a future 
budget. 

12.  Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 

em (LGRS) and additions 
to iary net position have been determined on the same basis as 
they are reported by LGERS.  For this purpose, plan member contributions are recognized in the 
period in which the contributions are due.  The Town of Mineral Springs s employer 
contributions are recognized when due and the Town of Mineral Springs has a legal requirement 
to provide the contributions.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the terms of LGERS.  Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
NOTE 2 -  STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
   

 A. Significant Violations of Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions 
       
 None 
 
 1.  Noncompliance with North Carolina General Statutes 
 
 None 
 
 2.  Contractual Violations   
 
 None 
 
 B.  Deficit in Fund Balance or Net Assets of Individual Funds 
 
 None 
 
 C.  Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 
 
 None  

 



 

 
 -27- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 3- DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 

A.  ASSETS 
 

1. Deposits 
 

All deposits of the Town are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods.  Under the 
Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the federal depository insurance coverage level are 
collateralized with securities held by the Town's agent in the unit's name. Under the Pooling Method, 
which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State 
Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer.  Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary 
capacity for the Town, these deposits are considered to be held by the Town's agent in their name.  
The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest-
bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the 
Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering 
uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Town escrow 
agent.  Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the Town 
under the Pooling method, the potential exists for under-collateralization, and the risk may increase 
in periods of high cash flows.  
 
However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for 
each depository that collateralize public deposits under the Pooling Method.  The Town has no 
formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State Treasurer to 
enforce standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions and to 
monitor them for compliance. 

 
At June 30, 2023, the Town's deposits had a carrying amount of $469,211 and a bank balance of 
$473,188.  Of the bank balances, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance.  The 
remaining $223,188 was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.  

  
2. Investments 
 
At June 30, 2023, the Town of Mineral Springs had $918,364 invested with the North Carolina 
Capita vernment Portfolio which carried a credit rating of AAAm by 
Standard and P Town has no policy regarding credit risk. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 -28- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 3-  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

3. Taxes Receivable  Allowance For Doubtful Accounts 

The amounts presented in Exhibit 1, the Combined Balance Sheet, are net of the following 
allowances for doubtful accounts: 

 
 Capital Assets 

Primary Government 

Capital asset activity for the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2023, was as 
follows:  

 
   Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

 

 
  
 



 

 
 -29- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 3-  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 
  

B. LIABILITIES 
 
1. Pension Plan and Postemployment Obligations 

 
a. Local  

 
Plan Description.  The Town of Mineral Springs is a participating employer in the statewide 
Local Governme tem (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina.  LGERS membership is 
comprised of general employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local 
governmental entities.  Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend 
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.  Management of the plan is vested in 
the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members  nine appointed by the Governor, 
one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and the 
State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members.  The Local 
Governmental Employee  Retirement System is included in the Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report for the State of North Carolina.  The St Annual Comprehensive Financial 
Report includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS.  That 
report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.gov. 
 
Benefits Provided.  LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits.  Retirement benefits are 
determined as 1.85% of th pensation 

ted as the average of a 
est consecutive years of compensation.  Plan members are eligible to retire 

with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 
years of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.  Plan members are 
eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at 
age 60 with five years of creditable service.  Survivor benefits are available to eligible 
beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of 
service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age or have 
completed five years of service and have reached ago 60.  Eligible beneficiaries may elect to 
receive a monthl life or a return of the member ns.  
The plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.  Increases are 
contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 -30- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 3-  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 
Contributions.  Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may 
be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  Town of Mineral Springs 
employees are required to contribute 6% of their compensation. Employer contributions 
are actuarially determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees.  The Town 
of Mineral Springs  contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 
2023, was 17.07% for general employees, actuarially determined as an amount that, when 
combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned 
by employees during the year.  Contributions to the pension plan from the Town of 
Mineral Springs were $19,130 for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
Refunds of Contributions.   Town employees, who have terminated service as a contributing 
member of LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions.  By state 
law, refunds to members with at least five years of service include 4% interest.  State law 
requires a 60 day waiting period after service termination before the refund may be paid.  

contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2023, the Town reported a liability of $40,616 for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022.  
The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2021.  The total pension liability was then rolled 
forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022 utilizing update procedures 
incorporating the actuarial assumptions.  The Town oportion of the net pension 
liability was based on a projection of the Town -term share of future payroll 
covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the 
pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 
2022 (measurement date) 078%, which was an increase 
of 0.00001% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 -31- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 3-  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Town recognized pension expense of $19,879.  At 
June 30, 2023 the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

$19,130 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from 
Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease 
of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense 
as follows: 

Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the December 31, 2022 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement: 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 -32- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 3-  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 
The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. 
general, law enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy).  The 
current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover 
significant portions of the U.S. population.  The healthy mortality rates also contain a 
provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2021 valuation were based on the 
results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2011 through December 
31, 2015. 
 
Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are 
therefore not included in the measurement. 
 
The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through 
review of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, 
consultant whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies.  Fixed 
income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and 
market expectations of forward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and 
over multiple year horizons.  Global public equity return projections are established 
through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections.  

s reflect the foregoing and 
historical data analysis.  These projections are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and 
best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 
2021 are summarized in the following table: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 -33- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 3-  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 
The information above is based on 30-year expectations developed with the consulting actuary 
for the 2018 asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement 
Systems, including LGERS.  The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of 
return are arithmetic annualized figures.  The real rates of return are calculated from nominal 
rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.00%.  All rates 
of return and inflation are annualized. 
 
Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%.  
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and that 
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially 
determined.  Based on these assumptions, the pension plan duciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan 
members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Town net pension asset to changes in the 
discount rate.  The following presents the Town s proportionate share of the net pension 
asset calculated using the discount rate of 6.5 percent, as well as what the Town
proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.5 percent) or one 
percentage point higher (7.5 percent) than the current rate: 
 

 
 
Pension plan fiduciary net position.  Detailed information about 
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report for the State of North Carolina. 

 
 b.  Other Post-Employment Benefits 

The Town of Mineral Springs does not provide any post-employment benefits to retired or former 
employees.    
 
 
 
 



 

 
 -34- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 
 

NOTE 3-  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS  Continued 
 
2. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 
The Town has several deferred outflows of resources.   
 
Deferred outflows of resources is comprised of the following: 
 

 
 
Deferred inflows of resources at year-end is comprised of the following: 
 

 
  

3.      Risk Management: 
 
The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, or damage to, and destruction 
of assets, including flood insurance; errors and omissions: injuries to employees; and natural 
disasters.  The Town carries commercial insurance for all risks of loss.  As required by general 
statute, the Town carries surety bonds on its financial officer of $50,000 and $10,000 for the tax 
collector and clerk/planning director.  The Town also carries flood insurance. 
 

  4.     Claims, Judgments and Contingent Liabilities 
 

The Town is not currently involved in any lawsuits, and thus no accruals to the financial 
statements is necessary.   
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 -35- 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

NOTE 3-  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

5.  Interfund Balances and Transfer Activity 
 
Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2023, consist of the following: 
 

 
6. Fund Balance 

 
The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of 
General Fund balance that is available for appropriation: 

 
The Town of Mineral Springs has adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General fund 
which instructs management to conduct the business of the Town in such a manner that available 
fund balance is at least equal to or greater than 20% of budgeted expenditures.  
 

NOTE 4-  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
   

None. 
 
NOTE 4-  SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES 

   
The Town may be subject to various lawsuits.  In the opinion of the Town egal 
council, the ultimate effect of any of these legal matters will not have a material effect on the Town
financial position. 

.   
NOTE 6-  DATE OF MANAG  REVIEW  
 

In preparing the financial statements, the Town of Mineral Springs has evaluated events and 
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through November 28, 2023, the date that the 
financial statements were available to be issued.  
 
 
 



 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA 
 
 

 Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Asset for Local Government rement 
System. 
 

 Schedule of contri tirement System. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-36- 
  

 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA       Schedule 1 

Town of Mineral Springs ility (Asset) 
Required Supplementary Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 

Local Government Employee  System 
 

 
 
 



 

-37- 
  

 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA   Schedule 2 

 
Town of Mineral Springs tions 

Required Supplementary Information 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 
Local Go irement System 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENTS 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-38- 
 

           TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA                          Statement 1 
                                                                                                                                                              Page 1 of 2 

    General Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes:

Taxes 88,305$          89,377$          1,072$            
Penalties and interest -                      388                 388                 

Total 88,305            89,765            1,460              

Unrestricted intergovernmental:
Local option sales taxes 33,000            38,760            5,760              
Telecommunications sales tax 2,500              2,362              (138)                
Utility sales tax 208,000          209,641          1,641              
Piped natural gas tax 1,300              1,779              479                 
Video programming 18,500            17,767            (733)                
Beer and wine tax 13,000            14,342            1,342              
Sales tax refund -                      1,625 1,625              

Total 276,300          286,276          9,976              

Permits and fees:
Zoning permits 3,500              6,888              3,388              

Total 3,500              6,888              3,388              

Investment earnings 600                 20,108            19,508            

Other:
Miscellaneous 600                 693                 93                   

Total 600                 693                 93                   

Total revenues 369,305          403,730          34,425            

Expenditures:
General government:

Salaries and employee benefits 149,264          145,178          4,086              
Other operating expenditures 102,512          88,846            13,666            
Capital outlay -                      -                      -                      

Total 251,776          234,024          17,752            

Public safety:
Fire protection 12,000            12,000            -                      
Street lights 1,500              1,354              146                 
Capital outlay -                      -                      -                      

Total 13,500            13,354            146                 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-39- 
 

                             TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA                              Statement 1 
                                                                                                                                                                 Page 2 of 2 

General Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

-40- 
 

    TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA                            Statement 2 
                                                                                                                                                                 Page 1 of 1 

CSLFRF  Grant Project Special Revenue Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-41- 

    TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA                     Statement 3 
                                                                                                                                                                 Page 1 of 1 

Social-Emotional Readiness Grant Project Special Revenue Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER SCHEDULES 
 

This section contains additional information required on property taxes. 
 

 Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 
 

 Analysis of Current Tax Levy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-42- 

 
                                 TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA                            Schedule 2 

 
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

June 30, 2023 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-43- 
 

                                     TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA                               Schedule 3 
                                                                                                                              

Analysis of Current Tax Levy 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 
 

.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 6420 Rea Road, Suite A1 #300 
Charlotte, NC  28277 

Tel:  704.996.0764 
Fax:  704.228.0340 

www.KG-CPA.com 
Email: kendra.gangal@kg-cpa.com 

-44- 

 
 
 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
and Members of the Town Council 
Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina 
 
 
I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing standards issued by the comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Mineral Springs, 

November 28, 2023. 
 
Report on Internal control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of Mineral Springs, North 

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Mineral Springs
control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness for the Town of Mineral Springs, North 

 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 

not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that I 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 

-45- 

 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Mineral Springs
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and compliance and the 

compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

other purpose. 
 
Kendra J. Gangal, CPA 
 
Kendra J. Gangal, CPA 
Charlotte, NC  28277 
November 28, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                  

 



 

 

MEMO 

To:  Mineral Springs Town Council 

From:  Rick Becker 

Date:  January 30, 2024 

Subject: Final Closeout of ARPA/CSLFRF Grant Project Ordinance 

 

Council first adopted O-2021-02 on August 12, 2021 to appropriate and spend Coronavirus State and 
Local Fiscal Recovery Fund (CSLFRF) revenues provided to the town by the US Treasury under the 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). The town’s total CSLFRF allotment was $270,618.75. 
 
Amendments to the Final Rule adopted by Treasury allowed small municipalities to utilize up to $10 
million in CSLFRF revenues for “Revenue Replacement” purposes, authorizing these funds to be used 
by municipalities for virtually any General Government purpose. Under the Rule, one way to use the 
funds is for a municipality to reimburse itself for certain expenditures made beginning on March 3, 
2021, including staff salaries and eligible benefits. Once those CSLFRF funds are utilized for these 
reimbursements, they become part of the municipality’s General Fund and the obligation to spend the 
federal dollars has been met.  
 
Council adopted O-2022-01 on October 13, 2022, reimbursing itself for salary and benefit expenditures 
from March 3, 2021 through September 30, 2022. The total amount of reimbursement made through this 
salary supplanting process was $230,669.86, leaving a balance of $39,948.89 in the CSLFRF Special 
Revenue Fund. 
 
Project Ordinance O-2023-05, attached, authorizes transfer of that final $39,948.89 to the General Fund 
and thereby closes out the original project ordinance. You can see that staff salaries and benefits from 
October 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 (with certain “pension deposits” and FICA employer 
contributions disallowed) are being reimbursed by this ordinance, as well as a final $3,050.91 of the 
Finance Officer’s salary for January 2023 for a total of $39,948.89. After adoption of O-2023-05, all 
CSLFRF revenues will have been transferred to the General Fund as “Revenue Replacement” dollars 
and the US Treasury requirements will have been met. The finance officer will still need to file annual 
reports to the US Treasury every April through 2027, but the 2025, 2026, and 2027 reports will reflect 
zero additional expenditures because the April 2023 and April 2024 reports will have reflected 
expenditure of the town’s entire $270,618.75 CSLFRF allocation.  
    

Agenda Item 

# _5_ 
2/8/2024 



Date Num Description Memo Category Amount

    10/28/2022 EFT    ...Paychex Salary 10/22 (FY2022) Office:Clerk -3,198.82

10/22 (FY2022) Office:Deputy Clerk -892.50

Salary 10/22 (FY2022) Office:Finance Officer -2,955.36

Salary 10/22 (FY2022) Planning:Administration:Salaries -2,765.48

    10/31/2022 EFT    ...NC State Treasurer 10/22 LGERS contribution ... Office:Clerk -204.18

10/22 LGERS contribution ... Office:Finance Officer -188.64

10/22 LGERS contribution ... Planning:Administration:Salaries -176.52

10/1/2022 - 10/31/2022 -10,381.50

    11/29/2022 EFT    ...Paychex Salary 11/22 (FY2022) Office:Clerk -3,198.82

11/22 (FY2022) Office:Deputy Clerk -1,164.50

Salary 11/22 (FY2022) Office:Finance Officer -2,955.36

Salary 11/22 (FY2022) Planning:Administration:Salaries -2,765.48

11/1/2022 - 11/30/2022 -10,084.16

    12/1/2022 EFT    ...NC State Treasurer 11/22 LGERS contribution ... Office:Clerk -204.18

11/22 LGERS contribution ... Office:Finance Officer -188.64

11/22 LGERS contribution ... Planning:Administration:Salaries -176.52

    12/29/2022 EFT    ...Paychex Salary 12/22 (FY2022) Office:Clerk -3,198.82

12/22 (FY2022) Office:Deputy Clerk -922.25

Salary 12/22 (FY2022) Office:Finance Officer -2,955.36

Salary 12//22 (FY2022) Planning:Administration:Salaries -2,765.48

12/1/2022 - 12/31/2022 -10,411.25

OVERALL TOTAL -30,876.91

TOTAL INFLOWS 0.00

TOTAL OUTFLOWS -30,876.91

NET TOTAL -30,876.91

Salaries Subject to Supplanting for ARPA: 10/1/2022-12/31/2022 - Q4 2022
10/1/2022 through 12/31/2022

1/30/2024 Page 1



Date Num Description Memo Category Amount

    10/25/2022 6478 ...Municipal Insurance Trust Of NC 10/22 (FY2022) Emp:Benefits:Life -60.80

10/22 (FY2022) Emp:Benefits:Dental -76.00

10/22 (FY2022) Emp:Benefits:Vision -14.00

    10/28/2022 EFT  ...Paychex FY2022 Emp:FICA:Soc Sec -713.76

FY2022 Emp:FICA:Med -166.92

    10/31/2022 EFT  ...NC State Treasurer 10/22 employer contribution FY2022 Emp:Benefits:NCLGE... -1,594.15

10/1/2022 - 10/31/2022 -2,625.63

    11/21/2022 6500 ...Municipal Insurance Trust Of NC 12/22 (FY2022) Emp:Benefits:Life -60.80

12/22 (FY2022) Emp:Benefits:Dental -76.00

12/22 (FY2022) Emp:Benefits:Vision -14.00

    11/29/2022 EFT  ...Paychex FY2022 Emp:FICA:Soc Sec -730.62

FY2022 Emp:FICA:Med -170.87

11/1/2022 - 11/30/2022 -1,052.29

    12/1/2022 EFT  ...NC State Treasurer 11/22 employer contribution FY2022 Emp:Benefits:NCLGE... -1,594.15

    12/29/2022 EFT  ...Paychex FY2022 Emp:FICA:Soc Sec -715.60

FY2022 Emp:FICA:Med -167.35

12/1/2022 - 12/31/2022 -2,477.10

    1/3/2023 EFT  ...NC State Treasurer 12/22 employer contribution FY2022 Emp:Benefits:NCLGE... -1,594.15

1/1/2023 - 1/3/2023 -1,594.15

OVERALL TOTAL -7,749.17

TOTAL INFLOWS 0.00

TOTAL OUTFLOWS -7,749.17

NET TOTAL -7,749.17

Gross Benefits Subject to Supplanting for ARPA: Q4 2022
10/1/2022 through 1/3/2023

1/30/2024 Page 1



Date Num Description Memo Category Amount

    10/28/2022 EFT...Paychex Salary 10/22 (FY2022) Office:Clerk -3,198.82

Salary 10/22 (FY2022) Office:Finance Officer -2,955.36

Salary 10/22 (FY2022) Planning:Administration:Salaries -2,765.48

    10/31/2022 EFT...NC State Treasu... 10/22 LGERS contribution FY2... Office:Clerk -204.18

10/22 LGERS contribution FY2... Office:Finance Officer -188.64

10/22 LGERS contribution FY2... Planning:Administration:Salaries -176.52

10/1/2022 - 10/31/2022 -9,489.00

    11/29/2022 EFT...Paychex Salary 11/22 (FY2022) Office:Clerk -3,198.82

Salary 11/22 (FY2022) Office:Finance Officer -2,955.36

Salary 11/22 (FY2022) Planning:Administration:Salaries -2,765.48

11/1/2022 - 11/30/2022 -8,919.66

    12/1/2022 EFT...NC State Treasu... 11/22 LGERS contribution FY2... Office:Clerk -204.18

11/22 LGERS contribution FY2... Office:Finance Officer -188.64

11/22 LGERS contribution FY2... Planning:Administration:Salaries -176.52

    12/29/2022 EFT...Paychex Salary 12/22 (FY2022) Office:Clerk -3,198.82

Salary 12/22 (FY2022) Office:Finance Officer -2,955.36

Salary 12//22 (FY2022) Planning:Administration:Salaries -2,765.48

12/1/2022 - 12/31/2022 -9,489.00

    1/3/2023 EFT...NC State Treasu... 12/22 LGERS contribution FY2... Office:Clerk -204.18

12/22 LGERS contribution FY2... Office:Finance Officer -188.64

12/22 LGERS contribution FY2... Planning:Administration:Salaries -176.52

1/1/2023 - 1/3/2023 -569.34

OVERALL TOTAL -28,467.00

TOTAL INFLOWS 0.00

TOTAL OUTFLOWS -28,467.00

NET TOTAL -28,467.00

Salaries With Accrued Pension Liability Disallowed: Q4 2022
10/1/2022 through 1/3/2023

1/30/2024 Page 1

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Under ARPA rules, accrued liability is considered "excess pension" and is disallowed for thepurposes of salary and benefit supplanting.The accrued LGERS pension liability percentage is 4.7%. Therefore, 0.47 x $28,467.00, or  $1,337.95 is disallowed.



Date Num Description Memo Category Amount

    10/28/2022 EFT    ...Paychex Salary 10/22 (FY2022) Office:Mayor -500.00

Salary 10/22 (FY2022) Office:Council -1,200.00

10/1/2022 - 10/31/2022 -1,700.00

    11/29/2022 EFT    ...Paychex Salary 11/22 (FY2022) Office:Mayor -500.00

Salary 11/22 (FY2022) Office:Council -1,200.00

11/1/2022 - 11/30/2022 -1,700.00

    12/29/2022 EFT    ...Paychex Salary 12//22 (FY2022) Office:Mayor -500.00

Salary 12//22 (FY2022) Office:Council -1,200.00

12/1/2022 - 12/31/2022 -1,700.00

OVERALL TOTAL -5,100.00

TOTAL INFLOWS 0.00

TOTAL OUTFLOWS -5,100.00

NET TOTAL -5,100.00

Elected Official FICA Payments Disallowed: - Q4 2022
10/1/2022 through 12/31/2022

1/30/2024 Page 1

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Mayor and Council salaries are not being supplanted for ARPA "revenue replacement"purposes. Therefore, the FICA employer payments of 7.65% based on those salaries aredisallowed.Disallowed FICA payments for the period Q4-2002: $5,100.00 x 0.0765 = $390.15. 



Date Num Description Memo Category Amount

    1/30/2023 EFT    ...Paychex Salary 1/23 (FY2022) Office:Finance Officer -2,955.36

    1/31/2023 EFT    ...NC State Treasurer 1/23 LGERS contribution FY2... Office:Finance Officer -188.64

1/4/2023 - 1/31/2023 -3,144.00

OVERALL TOTAL -3,144.00

TOTAL INFLOWS 0.00

TOTAL OUTFLOWS -3,144.00

NET TOTAL -3,144.00

Remaining Salary Subject to Supplanting for ARPA 1/1/2023-1/31/23
1/4/2023 through 1/31/2023

1/30/2024 Page 1

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Final Salary Supplanting calculation:1. Q4 2022 salaries to be supplanted:						$30,876.912. Q4 2022 benefits to be supplanted:

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
$7,749.17

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Gross

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Less excess pension disallowed:

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
$1,337.95

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Less elected officials' FICA disallowed:

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
$390.15

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Net

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
$6,021.07

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
$6,021.07

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text


msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
3. Salaries & Benefits supplanted Q4-2022:

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
$36,897.98

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
4. Remaining SLFRF revenues not supplanted:	

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
$39,948.89

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
5. Amount of salary from Q1-2023 to be supplanted:

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
$3,050.91



 

 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND CLOSING OUT O-2021-02: TO 

COMPLETE APPROPRIATION AND EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL 

CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUND (CSLFRF) 

REVENUES UNDER H.R. 1319, THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021 

(ARPA) 

O-2023-05 

 

  

BE IT ORDAINED by the town council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina 
that, pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following grant project ordinance is hereby adopted, amending Grant Project 
Ordinance O-2021-02, adopted on August 12, 2021: 

Section 1: This ordinance is to establish a budget for a project or projects to be funded by 
the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund (CSLFRF) revenues of H.R. 1319 
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA). The Town of Mineral Springs has received 
the full allocation CSLFRF revenues in the amount of $270,618.75. These funds may be 
used for the following categories of expenditures, to the extent authorized by state law. 

1. Support public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation efforts, 
medical expenses, behavioral healthcare, and certain public health and safety 
staff; 

2. Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, 
including economic harms to workers, households, small businesses, impacted 
industries, and the public sector; 

3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government 
services to the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the 
pandemic; 

4. Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to 
those who have borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their 
service in critical infrastructure sectors; and, 

5. Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary 
investments to improve access to clean drinking water, support vital 
wastewater and stormwater infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband 
internet. 

Section 2: The town has elected to take the standard allowance, as authorized by CFR 
Part 35.6(d)(1) and expend all its ARP/CSLFRF revenues for the provision of Revenue 
Replacement. Specifically, this ordinance authorizes reimbursement for salaries and 
benefits paid from October 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 and for only the portion 



 

 

of the Finance Officer’s January 2023 salary sufficient to utilize the remaining 
unassigned balance of the ARP/CSLFRF funds. The Finance Officer has determined that 
the salaries of the Clerk, Deputy Clerk, Finance Officer, Planning Director, and Deputy 
Tax Collector are allowable, and that LGERS pension contributions, NCLM Health 
Benefits Trust contributions, and FICA contributions for those employees are allowable. 
The 4.7% LGERS accrued pension liability employer contribution for the Clerk, Finance 
Officer, and Planning Director is considered a “pension deposit” and is disallowed. 
Elected Official salaries and any associated benefit payments, including FICA, are also 
disallowed. 

Section 3: Project Ordinance O-2022-01 authorized expenditure of $230,669.86 of the 
total ARP/CSLFRF grant of $270,618.75, leaving $39,948.89 unassigned and available 
for expenditure. 

Section 4: The following amount is appropriated for the project(s) and authorized for 
expenditure: 

Internal 

Project 

Code 

Project Description Expenditure 

Category 

(EC) 

Cost 

Object 

Appropriation of 

ARP/CSLFRF 

Funds 

005 Finance, Clerk, Tax, and 
Planning – October 1, 2022 
through December 31, 2022 

6.1 Salaries $30,876.91 

006 Finance, Clerk, Tax, and 
Planning – October 1, 2022 
through January 3, 2023 

6.1 Benefits $6,021.07 

007 Finance – January 1, 2023 
through January 31, 2023 
(part of total salary of 
$3,144.00) 

6.1 Salaries $3,050.91 

 Previously authorized for 
expenditure by O-2022-01 

6.1 Salaries & 
Benefits 

$230,669.86 

 TOTAL   $270,618.75 

 

Section 5: The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete the project: 

CSLRF Revenues                             $270,618.75 

Section 6: The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain sufficient specific detailed 
accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency and the grant 
agreements, including payroll documentation, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.430, 2 CFR 
200.431, and the town’s Uniform Guidance allowable Costs and Cost Principles Policy. 

Section 7: Grant Project Ordinance O-2021-02 is hereby closed out and all CSLFRF 
revenues have hereby been expended for the purpose of Revenue Replacement as 



 

 

authorized by the US Treasury Department’s Final Rule governing those CSLFRF 
revenues and transferred to the General Fund of the Town of Mineral Springs, leaving a 
balance of $0.00 in the CSLFRF Special Revenue Fund. 

Section 8: Copies of this grant project ordinance shall be furnished to the Budget Officer, 
the Finance Officer and the Municipal Clerk. 

Section 9: The Finance Officer shall continue to make annual reports to the US Treasury 
Department on the expenditure of CSLFRF revenues through December 31, 2026 as 
required by the American Rescue Plan Act until this reporting requirement is satisfied. 

 

 

ADOPTED this 8th day of February, 2024. 

 

 

 
 

___________________________________ 
Frederick Becker III, Mayor 

 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, Clerk 



 

  

 

 

MEMO 
 

To: Town Council 
From: Vicky Brooks 
Date: January 30, 2024 
Re: Agenda Item 6   Discussion and Consideration of a Nuisance Ordinance 
 
 
Councilman Muller requested this item to be placed on the agenda for council discussion. 
 
On October 13, 2016 during a town council work session held at a special meeting, Zoning Administrator Vicky 
Brooks reported on the proposed nuisance ordinance survey results from 21.5% of the town residents, which 
was followed by council discussion.  The following is an excerpt from the October 13, 2016 meeting minutes of 
that meeting: 
 
1. Any accumulation of trash, garbage, food waste and other trash which is the result of the absence 

of, or overflowing of, or improperly closed trash or garbage containers that attracts or is likely to 
attract mice and rats, flies and mosquitoes or other pests. 

 Survey Responses: 77% - very important; 9% - do not want; 3% - not important and 11% - 
somewhat important. 

 Meeting Discussion: 

o Accumulation is a health hazard and a major concern and respondents felt so as well 

o High priority on the list that keeps all of our people safe.  

o Highest citizen response in the “very important” category. 

o Health hazard or disease potential should not be underestimated.   

2. An open place, collection, storage place or concentration of combustible items such as 
mattresses, boxes, paper, automobile tires, garbage, trash, refuse, brush, old clothes, rags or any 
other combustible materials collection.  

 Survey Responses: 75% - very important; 9% - do not want; 4% - not important and 12% - 
somewhat important. 

 Meeting Discussion: 

o Very high on the list of respondents. 

o Accumulation is a health hazard and in addition these things could just burst into fire at 
anytime with the right conditions creating an environmental hazard.  

o There is still an electronics hut at the Parkwood dump where you can easily dispose of old 
televisions, etc.  

 
 
 

Town of Mineral Springs  
Town Clerk / Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 



 
3. Any weeds or other vegetation having an overall height of more than eighteen (18) inches above 

the surrounding ground provided that the following shall not be considered to be a part of this 
condition: trees and ornamental shrubs; cultured plants; natural vegetation on undeveloped 
property that is not a threat to the character of surrounding properties; and flowers and growing 
and producing vegetable plants. 

 Survey Responses: 43% - very important; 25% - somewhat important; 16% - not important; 
and 16% - do not want.  

 Meeting Discussion: 

o Change eighteen (18) inches to twenty-four (24) inches. 

o Add “including hay production” at the end. 

 
4. An open storage place for old worn out, broken or discarded machinery, car parts, junk, tire rims, 

furniture, stoves, refrigerators, appliances, cans and containers, household goods, plumbing or 
electrical fixtures, old rusty metal, fencing materials or other similar materials. 

 Survey Responses: 72% - very important; 13% - somewhat important; 5% - not important; and 
10% - do not want.  

 Meeting Discussion: 

o High on the list of respondents. 

o Define and clarify what an “open storage place” is; possibly add dimensions and 
specifications to the location (i.e. front yard, back yard, out of public view) of the storage. 

o Ornamental (i.e. old tractors, agricultural-type pieces, wheelbarrows, memorabilia, antiques, 
etc.) items would be excluded, but old refrigerators should not be excluded. 

o Zoning can eliminate some of these items under certain conditions; however, zoning cannot 
actually have things removed in the manner that a nuisance ordinance can. 

o Discussions regarding violation schedule notifications, etc. will be forthcoming.  

5. Any accumulation of garbage, rubbish, trash, or junk causing or threatening to cause a fire hazard. 

 Survey Responses: 75% - very important; 13% - somewhat important; 3% - not important; and 
9% - do not want. 

 Meeting Discussion:   

o Number five is a replication of number two; it met the same weight with respondents proving 
people read the questions carefully.  The responses were identical to those in two, because 
they were basically identical provisions. 

o Add “fire hazard” to number two and eliminate number five.  

6. A collection place for lumber, bricks, blocks, nails, building hardware, roofing materials, 
scaffolding, masonry materials, electrical supplies or materials, plumbing supplies or materials, 
hearing and air conditions supplies or materials or any other type of old or unusable building 
supplies (especially those with nails, staples or sharp objects and edges) unless such conditions 
are temporary in nature and cause by a current construction project in progress pursuant to a 
lawfully issued building permit. 

 Survey Responses: 55% - very important; 23% - somewhat important; 10% - not important; 
and 12% do not want. 

 Meeting Discussion: 



o Council wants more research done on this item.  What could the exceptions be for a 
person with a legitimate home occupation such as a contractor/landscaper who is storing in 
a responsible fashion/well organized that isn’t visible from the road?  Is there a way to 
better define “public view”?  Should it be view from a public road?  What about 
neighborhoods where the backyards back up to each other? 

o The concept of this regulation is good, but without it being so vague.  

7. Any building or other structure which has been burned, partially burned or otherwise partially 
destroyed and which is unsightly or hazardous to the safety of any person, is a continuing fire 
hazard or which is structurally unsound to the extent that the Code Administrator or his designee 
can reasonable determine that there is a likelihood of personal or property injury to any person or 
property entering the premises. 

 Survey Responses: 76% - very important; 13% - somewhat important; 2% - not important; and 
9% - do not want. 

 Meeting Discussion: 

o If N-Focus believes this is something a nuisance ordinance can enforce without a building 
code enforcement department it does allow at least some mitigation of certain dilapidated 
structures; it seems like a good way to tackle some of the problems that can’t be tackled 
any other way.  This is an area for study.    

o It should be noted if a property owner does not comply, it would be the town hiring a 
contractor to go in [to do the work], which could be costly; the town will be paying the bill 
and then a lien could be put on the property.  There was a question of if the person had the 
financial ability to pay if it would be handled differently; guidance will be sought from 
Attorney Griffin.  Reimbursement from the property owner may be able to be collected 
through the North Carolina debt set-off; this is another area of study. 

8. A collection place for tree limbs, dried brush, dead vegetation, stumps or other decayed wood and 
materials or other similar rubbish. 

 Survey Responses: 33% - very important; 34% - somewhat important; 17% - not important; 
and 16% - do not want.  

 Meeting Discussion: 

o A lot of people compost and piles can be fairly large sitting a long time. 

o Delete number eight.  

9. Nuisance vehicle: A vehicle on public or private property that is determined and declared to be a 
health or safety hazard, a public nuisance, and unlawful, including a vehicle found to be: See 
below: 

a. A breeding ground or harbor for mosquitoes, other insects, rats or other pests; or 

b. A point of heavy growth of weeds or other noxious vegetation which exceeds eight (8) inches 
in height; or 

c. In a condition allowing the collection of pools or ponds of water; or 

d. A concentration of quantities of gasoline, oil, or other flammable or explosive materials as 
evidenced by odor; or 

e. An area of confinement which cannot be operated from the inside, such as, but not limited to, 
trucks or hoods; or 

f. So situated or located that there is a danger of it falling or turning over; or 



g. A collection of garbage, food waste, animal waste, or any other rotten or putrescent matter of 
any kind; or 

h. One which has sharp parts thereof which are jagged or contain sharp edges of metal or glass; 

i. Any other vehicle specifically declared a health and safety hazard and a public nuisance by the 
Town Council. 

 Survey Responses: 67% - very important; 16% - somewhat important; 5%- not important; and 
12% - do not want.  

 Meeting Discussion: 

o To be consistent with number three – change “eight (8) inches” to “twenty-four (24) inches” 
under “A point of heavy growth of weeds or other noxious vegetation”.  

o Change “Town Council” to “Code Enforcement Officer” in the last bullet; it should be an 
objective decision, not one to be made by the town council.  

After holding a public hearing in March of 2017, the council adopted a nuisance ordinance and 
contracted with N•Focus Planning for code enforcement of the nuisance ordinance.  Several residents 
spoke during the public hearing.  One of the most popular comments addressed the unsightly 
downtown area; some comments referred to the town becoming like an HOA; and there were some 
that were in favor of the nuisance ordinance.  (The specific comments can be found online at 
www.mineralspringsnc.com in the March 9, 2017 town council minutes). 

Following is the list of violations the council agreed upon: 

1. Any accumulation of trash, garbage, food waste and other trash which is the result of the absence 
of, or overflowing of, or improperly closed trash or garbage containers, that attracts or is likely to 
attract mice & rats, flies & mosquitoes or other pests. 
 

2. An open place, collection, storage place or concentration of combustible items such as 
mattresses, boxes, paper, automobile tires & tubes, garbage, trash, refuse, brush, old clothes, 
rags or any other combustible materials collection, which are threatening to cause a fire hazard. 

 
3. Any weeds or other vegetation having an overall height of more than twenty-four (24) inches 

above the surrounding ground, provided that the following shall not be considered to be a part of 
this condition: trees and ornamental shrubs; cultured plants; natural vegetation on undeveloped 
property that is not a threat to the character of surrounding properties; and flowers and growing & 
producing vegetable plants, including hay production. 

 
4. An open storage place for old worn out, broken or discarded machinery, car parts, junk, tire rims, 

furniture, stoves, refrigerators, appliances, cans & containers, household goods, plumbing or 
electrical fixtures, old rusty metal, fencing materials or other similar materials. 

 
5. A collection place for lumber, bricks, blocks, nails, building hardware, roofing materials, 

scaffolding, masonry materials, electrical supplies or materials, plumbing supplies or materials, 
heating & air conditioning supplies or materials or any other type of old or unusable building 
supplies (especially those with nails, staples or sharp objects and edges) unless such conditions 
are temporary in nature and caused by a current construction project in progress pursuant to a 
lawfully issued building permit. Exception:  In any case where the conditions identified in this 
subsection are located in the rear yard and entirely concealed from public view from a public street 
and/or abutting premises by an acceptable barrier such as a wall, a privacy fence, or vegetative 
barrier providing for complete concealment of the conditions and where such conditions do not 
cause further violation of any other subsection as described herein Section (B).  Further, the 
storage of such materials, supplies, equipment, and similar items inside a completely enclosed 



building will not be considered in violation of this ordinance.  The Code Administrator shall have 
the authority to determine whether such concealment is adequate as required by this provision.  
  

6. Any building or other structure which has been burned, partially burned or otherwise partially 
destroyed and which is unsightly or hazardous to the safety of any person, is a continuing fire 
hazard or which is structurally unsound to the extent that the Code Administrator or his designee 
can reasonably determine that there is a likelihood of personal or property injury to any person or 
property entering the premises. 

 
7. Nuisance vehicle: A vehicle on public or private property that is determined and declared to be a 

health or safety hazard, a public nuisance, and unlawful, including a vehicle found to be: 
 

a) A breeding ground or harbor for mosquitoes, other insects, rats or other pests; or 
 

b) A point of heavy growth of weeds or other noxious vegetation which exceeds twenty-four (24) 
inches in height; or 

 
c) In a condition allowing the collection of pools or ponds of water; 

 
d) A concentration of quantities of gasoline, oil, or other flammable or explosive materials as 

evidenced by odor; or 

 
e) An area of confinement which cannot be operated from the inside, such as, but not limited to, 

trunks or hoods; or 
 

f) So situated or located that there is a danger of it falling or turning over; or 
 

g) A collection of garbage, food waste, animal waste, or any other rotten or putrescent matter of 
any kind; or 

 
h) One which has sharp parts thereof which are jagged or contain sharp edges of metal or glass; 

or 
 

i) Any other vehicle specifically declared a health & safety hazard and a public nuisance by the 
Code Administrator. 

  

In May of 2017, the council repealed the nuisance ordinance.  Following is an excerpt from the May 
11, 2017 meeting minutes on the discussion to repeal the nuisance ordinance: 

Mayor Becker explained there had been a lot of discussion and its sort of built up over the week on 
some of the problems we have had that have cropped up with management of our recently adopted 
Nuisance Ordinance; some abuse that’s creeping in and some difficulties/problems.  Some of the 
council has gotten some of the emails staff has.  The council worked very hard to try to make this 
bulletproof, but we have one citizen who has decided to abuse the reporting process.  In the first six 
weeks, we had four legitimate complaints about relatively well known problems in the town; we had 
heard about them before and they came in through channels.  Suddenly at the end of April, (Mayor 
Becker thought the council was copied on this with an email to the clerk) we were hit with a list of 14 
violations from somebody who had taken it upon himself to do what we promised we weren’t going to 
do: he is driving around the town and seeking out problems all over town and reporting them.  Mayor 
Becker stated, “we became very concerned in the tone of the emails, you saw some of them, was very 
confrontational and basically this is just the beginning”.  That’s not the words that were used but… So, 
staff began to discuss the problems, could we modify the reporting process, limit people to a certain 



number of complaints per year.  Mayor Becker explained that he discussed it with our attorney and he 
believed Councilwoman Critz has and that didn’t seem like a legally viable or even a practically viable 
solution, so we are up in the air and don’t know what to do.  Mayor Becker explained what he thought 
was happening (in his opinion), with four complaints, we just got our bill for April and Mr. Ganus has 
done a very fair bill, he has done a very good job in handling those complaints, plus receiving three of 
the fourteen and not even doing any major investigation, the bill is up to $634 for the first month of 
enforcement; that’s reasonable.  We have 11 that he hasn’t even touched yet and that’s the tip of the 
iceberg.  The other problem is some of these are nuisance structures and Mayor Becker doesn’t know 
if this council remembers a very nice, very large man (he must have played football in school) who 
was very concerned about his property where he had an old home place that was falling down and it 
was a life estate of his daddy and his mother was alive and there were going to be problems, he was 
concerned about that being a subject.  “Well, guess what, that has been reported, so now he will be 
subject to the extreme cost of demolishing that property, which isn’t visible from the street, it’s behind 
trees, it’s hurting nobody, so these are problems both to our citizens as victims of this abusive 
reporting and seeking out problems, seeking out sign violations (well, that’s zoning, we are talking 
nuisance) and then the cost of enforcement to the taxpayers with these bills to NꞏFocus are going to 
be escalating, so we need to figure out a way to make this stop”, Mayor Becker said.  It reminds 
Mayor Becker of a situation, let’s say we opened a swimming pool, we worked for two years on 
planning it, we spent $750,000, we opened a community pool, we did everything by the book, 
everything was right, we worked our fingers to the bone and the thing opened and the first month 
three children died of brain eating amoeba disease, we were attacked by a parasite, we would have 
no choice, but to close the pool.  No matter how hard we work, we’ve got to fix this before we can 
expose our community to this parasite; that’s kind of where we are at with our Nuisance Ordinance, 
we have been infected by a parasite and we need to find a way to fix this.  Mayor Becker stated he 
was going to turn it over to Councilwoman Critz, because she had a long conversation with our 
attorney (he didn’t want to monopolize the conversation) looking at possible things that a lot of them 
may involve.  “We talked about suspending the ordinance, but that’s kind of a legal term that has no 
meaning and really what you need to do is possibly repeal the ordinance pending further study and 
then readopt when you have come up with a process to protect our community from abuse”, Mayor 
Becker said.  Mayor Becker hoped he had elaborated the problem and noted that they were going to 
look at some possible solutions. 
 
Councilwoman Critz stated she would just hit a couple of the high points here and then certainly each 
council member has a feel or feelings on the subject; hers has been quite conflicted at times.  The first 
thing Councilwoman Critz went to was our “municipal bible” and it is sort of vague, so she went from 
there to our attorney, because she felt like she needed to know if we try to fix, what we now have 
evidence of as being loopholes or means of using this ordinance as a tool to police the community and 
to cause unfair advantage to people going around the community.  These are things that if you look 
back at our minutes of our public hearing, we said multiple times statements such as, “our intent for 
this ordinance is for this to be a tool for the community to use for extreme situations where there could 
be environmental damage or property damage, that it was not intended to be policed”.  None of us 
were planning to be the Nuisance Ordinance police and it was not intended for that and yet we have 
seen it used as that, so Councilwoman Critz began to feel like it was their responsibility, as 
councilmembers, to protect and serve this community.  It is like Mr. Kaltsounis said earlier, he knows 
that the council has worked hard to come up with the things that we have done and they have.  
Councilwoman Critz did not think this is a reflection on the fact that they haven’t worked hard, she 
thought it was a reflection on the fact that someone has found a way to take this ordinance and use it 
as a weapon or a tool against our neighbors, our community and it is being abused and misused; 
grossly misused.  Councilwoman Critz explained she felt a responsibility to stand between the abuser 
and our community in this, so speaking to Attorney Griffin in looking at a variety of ways to try and 
tweak it to correct the problem without repealing the Nuisance Ordinance altogether, Attorney Griffin 
assured her that we really can’t do that without opening ourselves up to a legislative and judicial 
situation that we can’t guarantee that we can fix.  The Institute of Government handbook pretty much 



says the same thing.  “Band-aiding” things that come to a situation where they are not working 
properly is typically not the best solution, so by repealing this we basically stop the ordinance dead in 
its tracks and basically it gets tabled, it’s ineffective, it’s gone.  It does not prevent us from further 
research and coming back to this using the foundation.  “I don’t believe for one second that the 
foundation of this ordinance is wrong.  I think the planning board did a great job and foundationally is 
correct.  I think there is some wording and some tweaking that we’ve got to look at”, Councilwoman 
Critz said.  Attorney Griffin assures Councilwoman Critz that we can, by repealing this, the policy just 
comes to an end and no way, shape or form prevents us from picking it back up, going back to it, 
bringing it back alive at a future date when we have had a chance to do a little more research on 
wording and see how other communities have corrected.  We are not the first municipality to have an 
ordinance that had very good intentions and worked very hard on misused.  Councilwoman Critz 
thought the only responsible thing at this point for the council to do was to repeal the ordinance and 
start over; fortunately we will not have to start from scratch, we will start with the foundation of the 
ordinance that we have, but we will do further research.  On Monday, Councilwoman Critz will be 
contacting the Institute of Government setting up an appointment and will be planning a trip to Chapel 
Hill to spend the day there talking to the “powers that be” to see if she can’t get more information on 
exactly their formulas (how they have handled certain problems/this kind of thing) and always running 
this through the filter of our own attorney who can let us know no matter how good of intentions we 
have or how hard we try, we need to be sure that we can legislatively and judicially provide the 
community with something that will actually do what we intended to do.  Councilwoman Critz thought 
the council made themselves perfectly clear in their public hearings what their intent was and she 
didn’t know any way they could have foreseen the excessive abusiveness that has taken place, so 
she certainly doesn’t want to make a motion at this point until everyone has had an opportunity to 
weigh in on this issue. 
 
Councilman Countryman stated that he felt it was really a sad day in that, as a board and certainly 
with the assistance of the planning board, they worked very hard to put this program together with the 
intent of obviously improving the appearance of our community, the congeniality of our community, the 
livability of our community, but it’s become very apparent very quickly that there is one individual in 
this community that has a vendetta against this board and will do anything that he can to create issues 
and disturbances by which they have to deal.  As Councilman Countryman’s colleague so clearly and 
plainly stated, “it was not our intent with the initiation of this ordinance to do anything other than 
provide a vehicle and means by which in those very rare circumstances we had a situation we needed 
to deal with, we had the ability to do so and we very effectively communicated during our public 
hearing that it was not our intent, our will or our desire to be policemen in the community and go out 
and look for these problems”.  Councilman Countryman commented “sadly, there is one individual in 
this community, his name is Charles Bowden and he has taken it upon himself to be the community 
policeman.  I think his intention is probably not honorable and he would debate that with me; however, 
his intention is to create a financial hardship for this board and to create an ill feeling within the 
community, so I think it is imperative that we take steps to ensure that he cannot continue to victimize 
the community as he has and I’m in favor of taking steps this evening that will bring that problem to an 
end”. 
 
Councilwoman Coffey stated that the council did as much due diligence as humanly possible in putting 
this together, getting the legal advice that they thought was best to their knowledge to meet the 
constituents of our town’s desires and what they believed would help to grow this town by improving it 
by getting rid of dilapidated buildings, situations that create health hazards to their constituents as well 
as to themselves; it is the council’s responsibility to do everything they can that will alleviate situations 
without their constituents becoming bankrupt.  Councilwoman Coffey commented that the council 
never spoke for the constituents of this community, they could never speak for them in saying they 
would not police, they could not do that, they stated that they as a board would not police, that is not 
what the council does, that’s not what NꞏFocus is doing, that was not their job and that was not in the 
description whatsoever.  Councilwoman Coffey continued that the council has to realize (not meaning 



any harm) that they can’t look at anyone badly, because they picked up the ordinance and read it and 
said, “well I am going to report this one, I’m going to report that, I’m going to report”, the council can’t 
hold that person responsible for that because they did according to what we had formulated.  That 
person had that right, because that’s a citizen, that is not this board; therefore, according to the rules 
that were in the Nuisance Ordinance, that person filed complaints, viable complaints Councilwoman 
Coffey did not know, NꞏFocus would have to make that decision; that is not what the council does.  
That person went by the ordinance as far as Councilwoman Coffey knew and it would be up to 
NꞏFocus to investigate and determine at $67 an hour.  Councilwoman Coffey reiterated the council did 
their due diligence, spent the time, the man-hours, the money, got the legal advice and it seemed to 
be what we needed; however, she is hearing that because we’ve had so many reports of violations it 
superseded what the council foresaw as being a financially feasible avenue to continue on.  When you 
put an ordinance in place you have to be ready to stand behind it and enforce it, the enforcer is 
NꞏFocus, that’s not the council, so that’s all Councilwoman Coffey has to say on it.  The person that 
made the complaints did according to the ordinance as far as Councilwoman Coffey knew and she 
hasn’t been to the 13 properties and that person is a citizen within their right according to this to make 
those complaints. 
 
Councilwoman Critz stated she didn’t know that she could like strongly disagree with anything that 
Councilwoman Coffey was saying, but she would like to correct something she said earlier on the 
planning board.   “The planning board was not involved in this, that was my error in judgment and 
statement, it was the council, as well as strong public input, which involved a survey, as well as a 
public hearing”.  Councilwoman Critz stated that there was a financial aspect to this for sure, that they 
can’t ignore, but that is not the worst offense here, to her the worst thing that has happened here is 
that someone is abusing their right, they are taking the ordinance and…  Councilwoman Critz stated 
that she foresees and she doesn’t want to say this now, because she thinks that at some point you 
need to hold your cards close to your chest and that is what she is trying to do right now, she is trying 
to hold her cards a little close to her chest right now and so by doing that she is going to limit what she 
says here, but what the gist is that there are some apparent loop holes in some of the wording that will 
allow someone who is a citizen and has the right to make a complaint to abuse that.  This is what 
Councilwoman Critz thought the council could improve upon, but she didn’t think they could do it 
tonight without throwing a band-aid on a very big sore, which is why she would like to see the council 
repeal it, take it back to the drawing board and take a step further than what they went before to see 
how this could be better worded and better organized.  “We cannot prevent, nor should we, every 
potential problem, but we are, I believe, responsible to stand, when there is an obvious problem and 
obvious abuse, to stand between that abuse and our constituents to the best of our ability”, 
Councilwoman Critz said.   
 
Councilwoman Coffey offered she would also be on record as stating “that there hasn’t ever been a 
perfect document created, so we are not going to get there”.  Councilwoman Critz agreed, but 
explained that she thought there was room for improvement, holding her cards close to her chest 
here. 
 
Councilwoman Krafft stated that she was in total agreement with Councilwoman Coffey, she believed 
that when you put forth an ordinance (our documents are living breathing documents) that sometimes 
you find that there are errors and sometimes you find that there are things that you could do better, 
hindsight is always 20/20, but she believes that the individuals that made complaints as citizens have 
the right to make those complaints based on an ordinance that we approved.  Councilwoman Krafft 
does not see any abuse of doing that as it has been stated, only because the ordinance is there and it 
was applied and she can’t criticize anybody for doing something that is on paper that the council 
approved.  With that being said, Councilwoman Krafft commented it is a financial thing that she pretty 
much anticipated and they all said in the beginning they would have an influx, but there are 
possibilities for improvement and that we need to take a step back and look at it further and she is 



okay with that, but know that anything that is put out there, everybody has a right to take it and apply 
it; that’s what we are here for. 
 
Councilwoman Cureton agreed and commented “you can’t do what I’d like to do, so I agree, I won’t 
say what I’d like to do”. 
 
Councilwoman Critz explained the one thing Attorney Griffin brought to her attention was that this 
would give the council time to view this well, so that it could possibly prevent the abuse or overly used 
or however you want to state that fact and that they could be sure that they are wording it in such a 
way that they are going to stand the test of time through a judicial challenge.  Councilwoman Coffey 
shared that Mineral Springs is not alone, Waxhaw made Channel 9 News, because some 85 to 90-
year-old lady hadn’t cut her grass according to their ordinance.  Guess what?  She still has to cut that 
grass.  The family complained, but she still has to cut the grass.  Councilwoman Coffey was just 
saying “we are not by ourselves”.  Councilwoman Critz agreed and stated, “but we are new at this”.  
Councilwoman Coffey replied, “we are all in this together”.  Councilwoman Cureton responded, “plus 
when they checked the police department, their grass was as tall as the lady’s grass”.  Councilwoman 
Coffey explained the only reason she threw that out there was [to say] that we are not by ourselves, 
everybody has challenges with their ordinance no matter how tight you think they are.  Councilwoman 
Critz asked Attorney Griffin if she were wrong in saying she thought the main reason that he 
recommended repealing it was so that Mr. Bowden couldn’t go back to the original document and 
claim any previous right, by repealing it now it is just “dead in the water” and he can’t go back to that 
ordinance and demand any rights under that wording, so then we would have the chance to look at it 
again and deal with that without any previous right.  Councilwoman Critz asked if what she was saying 
was correct.  Attorney Griffin responded that part of what Councilwoman Critz was saying was correct, 
but he didn’t think they individualized it, what they talked about was problems that Mineral Springs 
was facing and obviously someone mentioned where they thought the problem was coming from.  
They talked about it in terms of not doing this to prevent a particular person from making these 
complaints, but anyone could not avail themselves from making complaints over again; if there is a 
good way to do it.  Attorney Griffin didn’t know how they were going to look at that unless they stop 
this one, unless they want to continue with it and suffer the consequences of cost and everything else 
until they can appoint a study committee or do some further research as to how you limit one’s ability 
as a citizen to make complaints.  The purpose behind it was to encourage complaints Attorney Griffin 
thought.  Councilwoman Krafft asked if the complaints that have already been filed would go forward if 
the council repealed the ordinance today, because they are under ordinances that were active at that 
point or does that make them null and void, because the ordinance has been removed.  Attorney 
Griffin responded when you repeal an ordinance you don’t have an ordinance to enforce.  Mayor 
Becker responded “they would be”.  Councilwoman Critz responded “that’s the positive part of this, it 
gets tabled and we have a chance to look at it and review it without being under the gun to enforce 
anything while we’re trying to fix it, so that we cannot be so multitasking.  I think if we try to band-aid 
this we will probably come out with not really fixing the problem right”.  Mayor Becker shared that he 
did think about (in terms of what Attorney Griffin said) the idea that several complaints that are actually 
in process (asking Attorney Griffin to correct him if he was wrong), it sounds, “oh, we are going to 
throw all that work and all that process by NꞏFocus out, but really if we didn’t, if we allowed it to 
continue we’d change the ordinance while it’s in effect and those people are being treated a certain 
way, those violators, and then we make some changes that we finally get adopted in three months 
and they are different.  Now they have been prosecuted or dealt with under an old ordinance, we’ve 
changed the ordinance, now our standards have changed”.  Mayor Becker thinks that gets us in more 
trouble.  Mayor Becker thinks if it is repealed and those enforcement actions are suspended, then 
when we come back with an ordinance that we’ve hopefully removed some of the abuse potential then 
those people can re-complain, they will be on the same page and we won’t be governing earlier 
complaints and later complaints by two different standards, which Mayor Becker thought would really 
be a bad thing to do; that could result in confusion and legal action.  Mayor Becker shared that 
Attorney Griffin says, “the court house is open from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. five days a week”, so you 



never know if somebody wants to sue you.  Attorney Griffin commented that you get into the fairness 
issue, that’s for you people to deal with, not him, but it reaches a point sometimes that it becomes 
legal.  If you go ahead with these and how they are treated and you tweak it a little bit, people could 
fuss at you.  Mayor Becker added “then new people are treated differently, that is legislatively 
probably that’s not fair”.  Councilwoman Critz noted that towns do this all the time; they repeal 
ordinances and rework them.  Councilwoman Coffey reiterated that she wanted to make sure that the 
council understands that no matter what ordinance is in place, everybody has the right.  
Councilwoman Critz responded “no, we are not trying to prevent anyone from having the right, we are 
trying to prevent it from being abusive”.  Councilwomen Coffey and Krafft both responded, “there is no 
such thing”.  Councilwoman Critz replied, “well again, holding my cards to my chest here, there is 
some wording that I believe can be enhanced or improved”.  Councilwoman Coffey stated that was not 
what she was disputing, she was just saying she didn’t think that is going to be the case.  
Councilwoman Critz replied that Councilwoman Coffey might be right and she might be wrong, but she 
didn’t think…  Councilwoman Coffey commented “red lights are up, some choose to stop, some chose 
to go through.  How do you…”  Councilwoman Critz responded she just thought they had to try, she 
agrees with Councilwoman Coffey, but knowing this they at least have to try.  Councilwoman Coffey 
replied she was not disputing that at all, she was just saying the same situation will be present as the 
new document comes into place; everybody will have the right.  Councilwoman Critz commented if it 
happens, that they have done everything else they could do and they have improved wording and they 
have gone back to the Institute of Government and through the legal and went through Attorney Griffin 
and there are still abuses that take place then they will have to accept that.  Councilwoman Coffey 
replied, “but they are not abuses, that’s the only thing I want to say, they are not abuses if it’s to the 
standard that we put in place.  We really need to strike that; it’s not abuse”.  Councilwoman Krafft 
commented, “it’s not abuse, it’s his right”.  Councilwoman Coffey added that it was a person’s right to 
file a complaint based on the ordinance.  Mayor Becker stated the ordinance needs to be changed so 
that… Councilwoman Coffey responded, “okay, I got that, I got that”.  Councilwoman Cureton asked 
couldn’t it be so one person couldn’t file so many complaints.  Councilwoman Critz responded that’s 
one of the things they are holding. Councilwomen Krafft and Coffey responded, “you can’t do that”.  
Councilwoman Krafft explained that’s like telling you you can’t talk, because you are only allowed to 
have freedom of speech for five minutes.  Mayor Becker stated that was the original thought that he 
had brought up, he thought that was an easy thing and that’s what prompted the decision with the 
attorney and Attorney Griffin basically said that.  It’s not really a legally enforceable policy Mayor 
Becker didn’t think and he didn’t know what the answer….  Mayor Becker commented he was going to 
say one more thing, it will break his heart and he won’t even want to have a Nuisance Ordinance if 
they have a situation where we have citizens who have large pieces of property or who have smaller 
pieces of property that are well shielded where a situation has been the way it was, an old shed, an 
old barn, it’s been there for 20 years, 50 years, it hasn’t disturbed a neighbor, it hasn’t disturbed the 
public driving by, because they can’t see it and these people are now being hit with the hammer of our 
authority just because a citizen wants to abuse his right to file those complaints to hurt people; “that 
breaks my heart”.  That’s not what we wanted to do, we didn’t want to attack those citizens.  
Councilwoman Critz commented, “and that’s the only thing I would like for us…”  Mayor Becker asked 
if the council could fix that.  Councilwoman Critz continued “to look at fixing, is how we could possibly 
allow the right, we don’t want to stop someone’s right to complain or even the right things that need 
fixing to be eliminated, but we need to protect the others that are just being done to harass or harm 
someone.  That’s what we need to figure out, I think, I’m not sure”.  Councilwoman Coffey asked if she 
was understanding things correctly this evening, repeal is the way to go?  Councilwoman Critz 
responded, “that’s my opinion”. 
   
Councilwoman Coffey made a motion to repeal the Nuisance Ordinance and Councilwoman Critz 
seconded.  Mayor Becker stated, “I even drew up, in case it was, as the attorney says, if you are going 
to do something you make it as short as it can be and this is a copy of, he’s seen it, as short as it gets 
and we hold our cards close to our chest”.  Councilwoman Critz made a personal commitment to the 
council to do further research and will be going to Chapel Hill to meet with the Institute of Government.  



Mayor Becker stated there was a motion to repeal the ordinance tonight by Councilwoman Coffey and 
a second by Councilwoman Critz; there has been a lot of discussion.  Mayor Becker asked if there 
was any further discussion.  Mayor Becker read the ordinance:  “Whereas the Town Council of the 
Town of Mineral Springs finds that it is in the public interest to repeal an ordinance enacting the 
regulation of public nuisance conditions, private property O-2017-01 adopted on March 9, 2017.  Now 
therefore be it ordained by the council of the Town of Mineral Springs, NC.  The following:  Part 1: 
Mineral Springs Ordinance O-2017-01 Titled an Ordinance Enacting the Regulation of Public 
Nuisance Conditions Private Property is hereby repealed.  Part 2:  This ordinance shall be effective as 
the date of its adoption.”  The aforementioned motion by Councilwoman Coffey was passed 
unanimously as follows:  

 
Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton and Krafft  
Nays: None 

 

 



 

  

 

 

MEMO 
 

To: Town Council 
From: Vicky Brooks 
Date: January 31, 2024 
Re: Agenda Item 7   Discussion and Consideration of the 2024 Annual Festival 
 
 
It is that time of the year to consider making a decision on the annual festival.  As you may remember, 
last year, the town had to sign a contract with Harris Teeter for the use of their land to have parking for 
festival goers. 
 
I have reached out to my contact with Harris Teeter.  Currently, the status of the property is unknown.  
Harris Teeter is in discussions with someone interested in purchasing the property; therefore, the town 
cannot secure the Harris Teeter property for festival parking.  Without parking, it is not possible to hold 
the annual festival.  It may be some time (it could be days, or it could be months) before we learn the 
results of the Harris Teeter discussions with a potential buyer.  Will it sell?  Will the new owner grant 
the town permission for parking?  Last year was a struggle with very limited planning time after we 
finally gained permission for parking.  Everything was up in the air for quite some time. 
 
What about asking the Mineral Springs Methodist Church for parking?  The challenges of having 
offsite parking are getting people to the festival safely, which will require additional deputies and most 
likely permission from NCDOT to establish a temporary crosswalk.     
 
How long does the council want to wait before making a decision to move forward or to just cancel the 
festival indefinitely until the parking issue can be resolved?  
 
If a decision is made to move forward with the festival.  Is the council willing to contract an outside 
event planner to oversee the entire festival?  With limited staff and increasing workloads, the event 
planning has been known to stretch town staff extremely thin.    
 
  

Town of Mineral Springs  
Town Clerk / Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 



Deer Urban Archery Season Renewal Form 
(January 11- February 16, 2025) January 27, 2024 . . 

Town of Mineral Springs 

Vicky Brooks 

PO Box 600 

Mineral Springs, NC 28108 

Please update any contact information that is not correct 

Name of Representative: 

Address: 

City: Zip Code: -----------------------------
Email Address: 

Phone Number: 

Do you wish to participate in the 2025 Deer Urban Archery Season fJanuary11-February16,zozs} Yes D No D 
It is Wildlife Management policy to provide a complete list of participating municipalities to the hunting public in the 
Regulations Digest. Please indicate the phone number and/ or website to be listed in the 2024-25 Inland Fishing, Hunting, 
and Trapping Regulations Digest {Please Print) 

Phone Number: ------------------------------------------------------------------------

Website: 

Are there any changes to the map submitted with your participation letter? 

If "Yes", please attach a new map to this form. {No larger than ll"X17") 

Yes D 

Please print and sign the name of the representative for the Town of Mineral Springs. 

Name of Representative: 

(Please Print Name) 

Signature: 

No D 

Thank you for your interest in the management of our state's wildlife resources. Please complete and return this form 
by mail to: 

Terrell Eason, Program Support 

Wildlife Management Division 

1722 Mail Service Center 

Raleigh, NC 27699-1700 

a~w-~~ 
Brad Howard 
Chief, Wildlife Management Division 
{919) 707-0050 

Or email: 

terrell.eason@ncwildlife.org 

Applications must be received by April 1, 2024, to be a part of the Deer Urban Archery Season 

Mailing Address: \i\/ildlifc Management Division • 1722 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699 -1700 
Phone: (919) 707-0050 • Fax: (919) 707-0067 


	020824_tca
	011124_tcmd
	Finance_Report_2312_MSPDF
	240208_County_Tax_Report_Agenda_Item
	240208_Final_O-2023-05_ARPA_Revenue_Replacement_AGENDA_ITEM
	240130_ARPA_Revenue_Replacement_Closeout_MEMO.pdf (p.1)
	Final_Salary_Supplanting_Q4_2022.pdf (p.2)
	Final_Benefit_Supplanting_Gross_Q4_2022.pdf (p.3)
	Final_Accrued_Liability_Disallowed_Q4_2022.pdf (p.4)
	Final_FICA_Disallowed_Q4_2022.pdf (p.5)
	Final_Remaining_Salary_Supplanting_01-2023.pdf (p.6)
	23-05_ARPA_Grant_Project_Ordinance_CLOSEOUT.pdf (p.7-9)

	020824 MEMO to tc nuisance ordinance discussion
	020824 MEMO to tc 2024 festival

